Reporting

Services

Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/chemical/iccm3/

Vol. 15 No. 193

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Wednesday, 19 September 2012

ICCM-3 HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2012

ICCM-3 reconvened on Tuesday, 18 September in Nairobi,
Kenya. In the morning, delegates met in plenary to continue
discussions on emerging policy issues and the addition of
activities to the GPA. In the afternoon, delegates addressed
financial and technical resources for implementation. The
contact group on emerging policy issues resumed its discussions
on lead in paint, chemicals in products and hazardous substances
in electrical and electronic products. Delegates dealt swiftly with
emerging policy issues and the addition of activities to the GPA,
although there was some debate on managing perfluorinated
chemicals (PFCs) and the transition to safer alternatives. The
afternoon’s discussions on financial and technical resources
discussed possible options for future funding arrangements,
including options under the UNEP ED’s report on possible long-
term financing options for chemicals and wastes.

IMPLEMENTATION OF SAICM

EMERGING POLICY ISSUES: Nanotechnology
and manufactured nanomaterials: On nanotechnology
and manufactured nanomaterials (SAICM/ICCM.3/17),
THAILAND offered to establish a sub-regional hub in, inter
alia, “nanosafety,” noting that such a hub would continue
collaboration with other countries through activities such as
capacity building, awareness raising and developing safety
guidelines. Zambia, for the AFRICAN GROUP, called
for further information exchange, capacity building, and
development of training materials to enhance preparedness for
addressing products containing nanomaterials. CHINA outlined
the steps his country has taken, including promulgating national
standards regarding exposure hazards to human health and the
environment. NORWAY lamented the paucity of information on
the hazards and risks of nanotechnology. The CENTER FOR
INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL LAW (CIEL) noted
that despite the lack of information, precautionary approaches to
this issue are still applicable. SWITZERLAND, with MEXICO,
called for a comprehensive approach to address nanotechnology.

AUSTRALIA and the ICCA supported the EU and its 27
Member States' suggestion for streamlining proposed activities.
The ICCA and PERU supported emphasis on capacity building.
CANADA suggested that work on nanomaterials could be
accommodated within the existing GPA structure. PAKISTAN
urged including support for developing lifecycle and health
impact assessments of nanomaterials.

President Pietz forwarded the draft resolution submitted by
the OEWG (SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/2) to the contact group on
emerging policy issues for further deliberation.

Managing PFCs and the transition to safer alternatives:
President Pietz noted the progress report on PFCs (SAICM/
ICCM.3/18) and a proposal from the OEWG for a corresponding
ICCM resolution (SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/2). She stressed that
ICCM-3 would only provide feedback, not instructions, on

the Global PFC Group’s proposed work programme. The
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD) and UNEP, supported by the US, proposed removing
the resolution’s annex setting out terms of reference (ToR) for
the Group.

KENYA suggested that the Group hold regional workshops
to promote awareness around PFCs, and for the Stockholm
Convention Secretariat to undertake two pilot projects in Africa
on the lifecycle of PFC-containing products. The EU supported
inviting the Group to report to ICCM-4 and, with the US and
ICCA, supported the participation of non-OECD countries in
the Group. IPEN said the Group should cover additional PFCs
and not only those that industry is already actively phasing out.
SWITZERLAND called for the priorities for the Group work
programme to focus on the PFC survey, information about
PFC uses, and synthesis papers. The BASEL CONVENTION
REGIONAL COORDINATING CENTRE (BCRC) FOR
AFRICA, supported by SENEGAL, urged helping developing
countries build capacity to conduct environmental monitoring of
PFCs.

CHINA suggested, but SWITZERLAND opposed, replacing
“welcome” in the draft resolution with “take note.” At the
suggestion of NORWAY, SWITZERLAND, AUSTRALIA
and the EU, delegates proposed “inviting,” as opposed to
“requesting,” the Group to report to ICCM-4. The Conference
agreed to ask the Secretariat to draft a resolution based on the
OEWG proposal, but without the annex containing the ToR,
“inviting” a report to ICCM-4 and bracketing “welcome.”

New nominations for emerging policy issues: The
Secretariat introduced the agenda item on new nominations
of emerging policy issues on endocrine-disrupting chemicals
(EDCs) and environmentally persistent pharmaceutical
pollutants (SAICM/ICCM.3/19). On environmentally persistent
pharmaceutical pollutants, she said the proposal had not met the
criteria for consideration. She also noted that the OEWG did not
reach consensus on the inclusion of the EDCs proposal in the
agenda. President Pietz opened discussions on the nomination
and report on the status of EDCs (SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/23;
SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/22). The AFRICAN GROUP proposed a
resolution on EDCs (SAICM/ICCM.3/CRP.3) which, supported
by the RUSSIAN FEDERATION, URUGUAY, KIRIBATTI and
others, supported including EDCs as a new emerging policy
issue under SAICM, and additionally called for a cooperative
project to, inter alia, increase global awareness on EDCs,
support capacity building, and ensure the consolidation and
timeous delivery of information regarding EDCs.

BRAZIL preferred deferring a decision on the issue until
the World Health Organization (WHO) released their report
on the state of science on EDCs. Noting that the report in
question is “undergoing a clearance process,” the WHO said
that her organization is ready to work with the ICCM if EDCs
are included as a new emerging policy issue. ICCA cautioned

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Paula Barrios, Ph.D., Tallash Kantai, Kate Louw, Dorothy
Wanja Nyingi, PhD, and Keith Ripley. The Digital Editor is Manu Kabahizi. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of
IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the European Commission
(DG-ENV), the Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and
Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic
Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), and the
Government of Australia. General Support for the Bulletin during 2012 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of
Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, the Swiss Federal Office for the Environment
(FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies Py "
- IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute — GISPRI), http://enb.iisd.mobi/
and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin into French has been provided by the Government of France, the Belgium
Walloon Region, the Province of Québec, and the International Organization of the Francophone (OIF and IEPF). The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the
authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic
citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-
7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11D, New York, NY 10022, USA. The ENB Team at ICCM3 can be contacted by e-mail at <Kate@iisd.org>.

J3ENE
5]




O|Reportin
Pl

Wednesday, 19 September 2012

Vol. 15 No. 193 Page 2

against duplicating work in other fora through the inclusion of
EDCs. NORWAY urged the ICCM to use SAICM to address
EDCs comprehensively across all sectors.

The US COUNCIL FOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS
(USCIB) emphasized the need for scientific knowledge on EDCs
and said it was premature to include them as a new emerging
policy issue. GREENPEACE EAST ASIA emphasized the need
for precautionary and preventive approaches to deal with EDCs.
SUSTAINED LABOUR called for including labor-related issues
to enable policy development. The Conference agreed to request
the contact group on emerging policy issues to also consider
EDCs.

On environmentally persistent pharmaceutical pollutants,
INTERNATIONAL DOCTORS FOR THE ENVIRONMENT
outlined intersessional work, noting a proposal on the issue will
be submitted at OEWG-2.

EVALUATION OF AND GUIDANCE ON
IMPLEMENTATION AND REVIEW AND UPDATE OF
SAICM: Addition of activities to the GPA: On addition of
activities to the GPA for nanotechnology and manufactured
nanomaterials (SAICM/ICCM.3/3; SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/4/
Rev.1), NIGERIA supported its inclusion as a new work area
under the GPA. The EU called for establishing a register
of nanomaterials, encouraging information exchange, and
establishing public-private partnerships (PPPs) to ensure
environmentally-sound management of nanomaterials.

FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL RESOURCES FOR
IMPLEMENTATION: On financial and technical resources
for SAICM implementation (SAICM/ICCM.3/7) and possible
long-term financing options for SAICM (SAICM/ICCM.3/10),
the Secretariat noted relevant reports provided by, inter alia, the
IOMC, UNEP and the WHO. Greg Filyk (Canada), Co-Chair
of the finance contact group at the OEWG, highlighted views
on: mainstreaming chemicals management into national policy;
industry involvement; and external funding options.

The Secretariat introduced the documents related to the
QSP, including conclusions and recommendations of the QSP
Executive Board on the Programme’s midterm evaluation, the
report of the QSP, and the report on the implementation of the
QSP and its Trust Fund (SAICM/ICCM.3/8, 9 and 23). QSP
Executive Board Co-Chair Nassereddin Heidari (Iran) then
highlighted some recommendations of the Board, including that
ICCM-3 should consider ways to promote mainstreaming of
sound chemicals management throughout their life-cycle into all
relevant development plans and programmes.

UNERP noted the positive response to the ED’s draft proposal
(SAICM/ICCM.3/12), and informed that the next steps for the
ED are to take feedback into account, and finalize the report for
consideration by the thirteenth session of the UNEP GC.

The Global Environment Facility (GEF) highlighted its
contribution towards fulfilling SAICM’s objectives, noting
a direct contribution of US$5 million for financing relevant
pilot projects, and an indirect contribution of US$25 million
for financing mercury-related projects and the environmentally
sound management of e-wastes.

On the QSP, the EU called for prioritizing mainstreaming of
sound chemicals management into national development plans.
On long-term financing of SAICM, he welcomed the partnership
with the GEF to augment available finances, and supported
the ED’s proposal that the GEF host a dedicated external fund.
Brazil urged reintroducing external financing and the creation
of a new financial mechanism in the proposal, stressing that the
elements in the proposal should be complementary to external
financing. CANADA did not support the establishment of a new
integrated chemicals and wastes GEF focal area as suggested in
the ED’s proposal.

FAO, for the IOMC, called on delegates to consider the QSP
as a model for new funding arrangements. On external financing,
under the ED’s proposal, he stressed that funds should be
specifically dedicated to actions that support efforts towards the
2020 goal.

GRULAC, with the AFRICAN and ASIA-PACIFIC GROUPS,
THAILAND, SENEGAL, IRAQ, MOLDOVA and others called
for extending the QSP until a long-term financing solution is

operational. GRULAC supported allowing the QSP to cover
implementation activities and requested that the Executive Board
develop project performance and implementation indicators. The
ASIA-PACIFIC GROUP called for the QSP to focus primarily on
assisting developing countries on priority issues. Introducing a
new proposal (SAICM/ICCM.3/CRP.5), the AFRICAN GROUP
called for restructuring the QSP to prioritize the facilitation of:
mainstreaming; meaningful industry involvement in chemicals
management; broadening the financing base; and development
and use of economic instruments and internalization of costs for
sound chemicals management.

GRULAC noted that the UNEP ED’s proposal does not
cover the option of a fund modeled on the Montreal Protocol’s
Multilateral Fund, and does not address regional dimensions.
JAPAN welcomed the UNEP ED’s proposals regarding
mainstreaming and industry involvement, but raised concerns
about the proposal to help establish national chemicals and waste
units.

UNDP noted the UNDP-UNEP Partnership Initiative for
the Integration of Sound Management of Chemicals into
Development Planning Processes, and drew attention to its
progress report on this work (SAICM/ICCM.3/INF/10).

NIGERIA reiterated its proposal for strengthening the existing
structures and institutions responsible for funding under the
QSP to ensure immediate, sustained and efficient financing and
implementation of SAICM beyond enabling activities. EGYPT
said his government would not accept the use of taxes as a
financing strategy.

SWITZERLAND, supported by BURUNDI, proposed the
disbursement of funds to ongoing and newly approved projects.
He highlighted upcoming meetings relevant to the long-term
financing of chemicals and wastes management, including the
upcoming meeting of the GEF Council in November 2012
and the UNEP GC/GMEF in February 2013. NORWAY urged
completing negotiations on the financial mechanisms before the
27th session of the UNEP GC.

ICCA highlighted the need for industry support in financing
and sharing experience in risk management. IPEN remarked on
the expansion of the chemical industry emphasizing that it is
time for industry to “pay its fair share.”

IRAQ emphasized the importance of technical assistance
and information exchange in addition to financial assistance.
The SOCIETY OF ENVIRONMENTAL TOXICOLOGY AND
CHEMISTRY expressed interest in contributing to SAICM’s
capacity building activities, in particular on risk reduction.

A contact group was established to continue deliberations
on financial and technical resources chaired by Daniel Ziegerer
(Switzerland) and Elsa Miranda (Indonesia).

IN THE CORRIDORS

Day two saw sensitive issues coming to the fore during the
morning plenary, including statements from some parties calling
for assistance to developing countries as they confront “toxic
chemicals dumping” from companies that are mostly located in
the developed world. Some said that a more effective approach
would be to eliminate “double standards” on issues such as lead
in paint, which is still widely available in developing countries
and exposes children and vulnerable populations to considerable
risks, while lead-free paint is sold elsewhere. One regional group
expressed great frustration at the apparent lack of flexibility
exhibited by some delegations to consider proposals on this issue
that go beyond what was agreed at OEWG-1.

On EDCs, the second sensitive point, the Conference heard
impassioned pleas to add this as a new emerging policy issue
as soon as possible. Most supported this, but a few delegates
objected on the basis that SAICM would only be duplicating
efforts by other organizations, and thus wasting precious
resources. As sustainable financing arrangements for SAICM
were being discussed in the afternoon, delegates wondered
whether the commitment to address new emerging issues will
be matched by commitments to financially support activities on
such issues, in addition to the existing issues currently covered
by SAICM.



